

**GENERAL FEDERATION OF WOMEN'S CLUBS OF ARKANSAS
CONSTITUTION, BYLAWS AND STANDING RULES**

Revised Revision October 2021

TABLE OF CONTENTS

CONSTITUTION

ARTICLE I	Name.....	2
ARTICLE II	Object.....	2
ARTICLE III	Membership.....	2
ARTICLE IV	Officers.....	2
ARTICLE V	Executive Committee.....	2
ARTICLE VI	Board of Directors.....	2
ARTICLE VII	Amendments.....	2
ARTICLE VI	Dissolution.....	2

BYLAWS

ARTICLE I	Membership.....	3
ARTICLE II	Dues and Finances.....	3
ARTICLE III	Officers.....	3
ARTICLE IV	Executive Committee.....	6
ARTICLE V	Board of Directors.....	7
ARTICLE VI	Meetings and Conventions.....	7
ARTICLE VII	Community Service Programs and Committees.....	8
ARTICLE VIII	Standing Committees.....	8
ARTICLE IX	Parliamentarian Authority.....	10
ARTICLE X	Amendments.....	10
ARTICLE XI	Resolutions.....	10
ARTICLE XII	Dissolution.....	10

STANDING RULES

Section 1	Expenses of the GFWC of AR President and President-elect.....	11
Section 2	Expenses of Other Officers, Chairmen, and Appointees.....	11
Section 3	Expense Reporting.....	11
Section 4	Convention Expenditures and Fees Obligations.....	11
Section 5	Hosting Club Obligations.....	12
Section 6	Directory and Club President Manual.....	12
Section 7	GFWC of AR Dues and Treasurer's Obligations.....	12
Section 8	Mobile Communication Devices.....	12
Section 9	South Central Region (SCR).....	13
Section 10	Financial Review Committee.....	13
Section 11	Internal Assessments.....	13
Section 12	Federation Speaks.....	13
Section 13	Club Member Names and Information.....	13
Section 14	GFWC of AR Areas.....	13
Section 15	Dissolution of GFWC of AR District assets.....	13

CONSTITUTION

ARTICLE I - NAME

The name of this organization shall be General Federation of Women's Clubs of Arkansas (hereafter known as GFWC of AR).

ARTICLE II - OBJECT

The object of GFWC of AR shall be to share mutual counsel and helpfulness and to unite the influence and service of women in promoting movements looking toward the betterment of life. Said organization is organized exclusively for charitable and educational purposes, including, for such purposes, the making of distributions to organizations that qualify as exempt organizations under Section 501(c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954 (or the corresponding provisions of any future United States Internal Revenue Law.

ARTICLE III - MEMBERSHIP

GFWC of AR shall be comprised of Women's Clubs in Arkansas and kindred organizations.

ARTICLE IV - OFFICERS

The elected officers shall be President, President-elect, Vice President, Secretary, Treasurer and one (1) to three (3) Representatives as needed, in order to have at least one Elected Officer from each area of the state.

ARTICLE V - EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Executive Committee shall consist of all elected officers of GFWC of AR.—

ARTICLE VI - BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors shall consist of the Executive Committee, Past State Presidents, the Chairmen of Community Service Programs, Special Programs, Special Projects, Standing Committees, and the Presidents of GFWC of AR clubs.

ARTICLE VII - AMENDMENTS

Amendments to the Constitution may be made at any annual convention by a two-thirds vote of those present and voting, provided the proposed amendment has been appended to the call to convention. Amendments of an emergency nature may be considered at annual convention without previous notice but require approval of a nine-tenths majority vote of those present and voting.

ARTICLE VIII - DISSOLUTION

Upon the dissolution of this organization, assets shall be distributed for one or more exempt purposes within the meaning of section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, or corresponding section of any future federal tax code, or shall be distributed to the federal government, or to a state or local government, for a public purpose.

BYLAWS

ARTICLE I - MEMBERSHIP

Section 1. Eligibility

Organizations eligible for membership must have a constitution and/or Bylaws and must not have a requirement for secrecy or a sectarian or political test for membership. The application should also show that none of its members is affiliated with any organization that tolerates violation of federal or state laws and that it agrees to the Bylaws and Constitution of the GFWC and GFWC of AR.

Section 1.1 Types of Membership

There shall be two types of membership: regular and at large. Members will receive newsletters, invitations to all meetings of GFWC of AR, emails, and other perks of belonging to GFWC.

A) Clubs applying for regular membership shall send its application to the GFWC of AR President-elect with a copy of its Constitution/Bylaws, names and addresses of its members and GFWC dues. This information shall be forwarded to the Executive Committee. The Executive Committee shall recommend admission/acceptance of clubs to the Board of Directors.

B) At large membership is available for those current members who wish to retain membership in GFWC and GFWC of AR without retaining membership in a specific club. At large members shall submit a completed application requesting the status change and the required fee to the President-elect by November 1. The Membership Committee shall notify the member of her approved status change within 14 days and shall forward the application and fee to the GFWC of AR Treasurer.

Section 1.2 Termination of Membership

Clubs and at large members failing to pay dues by December 1st shall be dropped automatically. Clubs and at large members whose activities and purposes have been proved to be incompatible with those of GFWC of AR shall be removed from membership by a majority vote of the Board of Directors.

Section 1.3 Resignation of Membership Clubs or at large members wishing to resign from GFWC of AR shall give written notice to the AR President-elect by December 31st.

Section 1.4 Reinstatement of Membership

Clubs and at large members applying for reinstatement to membership shall be admitted upon the requirements as for new clubs or at large members and the payment of back dues.

ARTICLE II - DUES AND FINANCES

Section 2.1 Annual club per member and at large dues (as written in the Standing Rules) shall be sent to the GFWC of AR Treasurer by November 1.

Section 2.2 The annual dues of GFWC of AR as a member of South Central Region (SCR) shall be payable to the SCR Treasurer by October 1, as written in the Standing Rules.

Section 2.3 The annual dues of GFWC shall be paid before February 15th of each year based on the number of active members.

Section 2.4 Profits from fund raising projects shall be used only for GFWC of AR business.

Section 2.5 The fiscal year shall be from July 1 through June 30.

Section 2.6 Dues of new clubs accepted to membership during the fiscal year shall be sent immediately to GFWC Headquarters in Washington so that names of clubs may receive all recognition, literature, etc., due a member club.

ARTICLE III - OFFICERS

Section 3.1 Title. The elected officers of GFWC of AR shall be President, President-elect, Vice President, Secretary, Treasurer and one (1) to three (3) Representatives as needed, in order to have at least one elected officer from each area of the state.-

Section 3.2 Eligibility. Each candidate for GFWC of AR office shall have been a member in good standing for a minimum of three (3) years and will have served as an officer of a GFWC club, district, or state. She must also be endorsed in writing by two GFWC of AR members. If elected, she shall continue her

membership in GFWC of AR.

Section 3.3 Term

- A) The term of office shall be for two years excluding the Treasurer which shall be unlimited with the approval of the Executive Committee.
- B) Officers shall serve from the adjournment of the GFWC of AR Annual Convention. The immediate Past President, as member on the GFWC Board of Directors, shall represent GFWC of AR and report on her administration.
- C) No member shall hold more than one elected office at the same time, and no member shall be eligible for re-election for the same office consecutively, excluding the office of Treasurer.

Section 3.4 Nominations and Election

- A) Nomination for office shall be made by a nominating committee composed of three members of the GFWC of AR Board of Directors and three members representing different areas of the state. The three members of the committee shall be elected at the GFWC of AR fall board meeting prior to the state convention when elections occur.
- B) The nominating committee shall meet at a time and place designated by the GFWC of AR President. The GFWC of AR President shall call the meeting to order and preside until a chairman is elected.
- C) The slate of nominees from the nominating committee shall be completed in time to publish in the Federation Speaks (state newsletter in print or electronically) at least 30 days before the annual convention closing the two-year administration. With the slate of nominees, a brief resume of qualifications of each candidate shall be published, along with a picture of each candidate, if possible.
- D) The officers of GFWC of AR shall be elected by ballot at the annual convention in the even-numbered calendar years. A plurality vote shall elect.
- E) Nominations may be made from the floor following the announcement of the slate of nominees. Candidates so nominated from the floor shall have consented to be nominees and shall meet the Bylaw requirement for eligibility.
- F) The slate of nominees may be declared an election provided nominations from the floor are called for by the GFWC of AR President and there are none.

Section 3.5 Vacancies A vacancy shall be filled as provided in this section:

- A) In case of a vacancy in the office of the president, the President-elect shall accede to the office and shall serve until the close of the administration.
- B) In the event of a vacancy in the office of the president-elect, the Vice president shall accede to the office and shall serve until the close of the administration.
- C) Should a vacancy occur in the office of the vice-president, secretary, treasurer, or representative the Executive Committee shall elect by ballot, at a meeting called for that purpose, a person to serve until the close of the administration.
- D) Should an officer, for any unexcused reason, fail to attend three consecutive meetings of either the Executive Committee, Board of Directors and/or convention, her office shall be declared vacant. In such case, the vacancy shall be filled as stated above in A, B, or C of Section 3.5. Executive Committee meetings and meetings of the Board of Directors, when held in connection with the GFWC of AR conventions, shall be considered one meeting.
- E) Should any Community Service Program, GFWC Partnership, GFWC Advancement Chairmen, Special or Standing committee, Project or Contest Chairman be unable or unwilling to serve, that position shall be declared vacant, and a successor appointed by the President with the approval of the Executive Committee.

Section 3.6 Duties of Officers

A) President

1. The President shall; have general oversight of the work of GFWC of AR Conventions and shall preside at all meetings of GFWC of AR, Board of Directors, and the Executive Committee.
2. The President shall appoint the state Parliamentarian, Counselor, Historian, Chaplain and Convention/Meeting Coordinator. She shall select and set up programs and contest committees subject to approval by the Executive Committee prior to the publication of the Directory and Club President's Manual. She shall appoint chairmen for Community Service Programs, GFWC Advancement Areas, the Membership, Standing, Special Projects and Contest Committees.
3. The President or an appointee shall serve as Editor of Federation Speaks. She shall appoint a Circulation Chairman.
4. The President shall transfer to her successor all files and materials pertaining to the position immediately after the GFWC Convention, or no later than 15 days thereafter.
5. The President together with the Secretary will sign all contracts for GFWC of AR.

B) President-elect

1. In the absence of the GFWC of AR President, the President-elect shall perform the duties of the GFWC of AR President.
2. The President-elect shall cooperate with the President in the supervision of the business of GFWC of AR, serve as the Associate Editor of Federation Speaks and act as advisor to the local club presidents, reporting to the Board of Directors and Executive Committee.
3. The President-elect shall serve as Chairman of the Membership Committee and be responsible for maintaining a current list of all GFWC of AR clubs, members, and their contact information.
4. The President-elect shall compile a list of the new GFWC of AR Board of Directors and other pertinent facts required for publishing a new Directory and Club President's Manual.
5. The President-elect shall transfer to her successor all files and materials pertaining to the position immediately upon adjournment of the GFWC of AR Convention during which her successor is installed in office, or no later than 30 days thereafter.

C) Vice President

1. The Vice President shall cooperate with the President in the supervision of the business of GFWC of AR. She shall perform the duties of the President or the President-elect in their absence.
2. The Vice president shall act as advisor to special committees and projects and be responsible for the inventory of the physical properties of GFWC of AR.
3. The Vice President shall act as Dean of Community Service Programs, GFWC Affiliates, GFWC Advancement Areas, receiving all Club Presidents' reports. She shall compile and distribute these reports to the proper GFWC of AR chairmen.
4. The Vice President shall report volunteer hours to the appropriate State of Arkansas commission or department each February.
5. The Vice President shall transfer to her successor all files and materials pertaining to the position immediately upon adjournment of the convention or no later than 30 days thereafter.

D) Secretary

1. The Secretary shall keep a record of all proceedings of all meetings of GFWC of AR, the Board of Directors and the Executive Committee. She shall send a copy of the minutes of each meeting to the President within 30 days and to each member of the Executive Committee within 60 days.
2. She shall have custody of all documents pertaining to GFWC of AR.
3. The Secretary shall transfer to her successor all GFWC of AR property upon adjournment of the GFWC of AR Convention within 30 days.
4. The Secretary shall ensure that the Constitution, Bylaws and Standing Rules are kept current.

E) Treasurer

1. Upon taking office, the Treasurer shall be bonded by GFWC of AR in the amount approved by the Executive Committee.
2. Following election of GFWC of AR officers, the Executive Committee shall choose the bank and trust company to be used by the incoming Treasurer, who shall order checks, as necessary.
3. The Treasurer shall insure those signatures for herself, the President, and the Chairman of the Budget and Finance Committee are on file at all banking and financial institutions used by GFWC of AR.
4. The Treasurer shall collect all dues and funds belonging to GFWC of AR. She shall receive, deposit and disburse all funds.
5. The Treasurer shall make a full report at each meeting of the Executive Committee and the Board of Directors and at other times when requested by the President or any three members of the Board of Directors. She shall make a full report at each GFWC of AR convention.
6. The Treasurer shall issue checks upon written or electronic request of the President. No checks shall be written without proper documentation.
7. The Treasurer shall remit the SCR dues and the GFWC dues annually as required.
8. The Treasurer shall serve as a member of the Budget and Finance Committee.
9. The Treasurer shall submit a report annually to the GFWC of AR President, President-elect, and the Chairman of the Budget and Finance Committee that shall set forth the number of members and the names of clubs in good standing having paid dues by February 1 each year. This report shall be submitted no later than February 15 annually. It shall contain tabulation of clubs gained or lost, the amounts of dues, assessments, and the totals paid in each designated fund. Notice shall be given to the appropriate Club President concerning any club arrears.
10. In the inability of the Treasurer to function, the Chairman of the Budget and Finance Committee shall be authorized to sign GFWC of AR checks, at the request of the President
11. At the end of each administration, the financial records and accounts shall be reviewed and a report prepared by a Financial Review Committee. The Financial Review Committee shall be appointed by the President during the spring convention at the end of each administration.
12. The retiring Treasurer shall, not later than August 1 after the close of the convention at which her successor is installed, turn over to the incoming Treasurer all money, vouchers, books, and papers of the GFWC of AR that are in her custody together with the report from the Financial Review Committee.

F) Representatives

1. Representatives shall be active representatives of their area of the state on the Executive Committee.
2. Representatives shall be the liaison between their area of the state and the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE IV - EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Section 4.1 Definition. The Executive Committee shall consist of the GFWC of AR President, President-elect, Vice President, Secretary, Treasurer and one (1) to three (3) Representatives as needed, in order to have at least one Elected Officer from each area of the state.

Section 4.2 Duties.

1. The Executive Committee shall meet at least quarterly and at the call of the President. The Executive Committee may transact business by voting by mail or electronic means when necessary. A report of such action shall be ratified and made a part of the minutes of the next meeting of the Executive Committee.
2. The Executive Committee is empowered to transact, between Board of Directors meetings, the routine business of GFWC of AR.
3. The Executive Committee shall act in emergencies that do not affect the policies of GFWC of AR or entail expenditures from GFWC of AR funds of not more than \$500 during one fiscal year.

4. The Executive Committee shall approve the financial institution to be used by GFWC of AR at the beginning of the administration.
5. The Executive Committee shall approve chairmen of the Community Service Programs, GFWC Affiliates, GFWC Advancement Areas, Standing Committee, Special Committee, contest and special projects, as appointed by the President.
6. The Executive Committee shall determine the date and place of the annual convention.
7. Contests and special projects may be created, united, or discontinued at the discretion of the Executive Committee.
8. The Executive Committee shall review proposed amendments to the bylaws.
9. The Executive Committee shall submit standing rules or rules of procedure and order to the Board of Directors for their recommendations.
10. At the invitation of the GFWC of AR President, other appointees and guests may attend the Executive Committee's meetings. Appointees and guest shall have no vote in these meetings.

Section 4.3 Quorum. The quorum for meetings of the Executive Committee shall be a majority of Its members.

ARTICLE V – BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Section 5.1 Definition. The Board of Directors shall consist of the Executive Committee, Past State Presidents, the chairmen of Community Service Programs, chairmen of Special Projects, chairmen of Standing Committees, and Club Presidents.

Section 5.2 Meetings. The Board of Directors shall meet two times per year, one on the day before or the day of the annual convention. Special meetings may be called by the President or upon the request of three members of the Executive Committee. At the invitation of the GFWC of AR President, other members and guests may attend the Board of Director's meetings without a vote. A registration fee per capita shall be required to defray expenses of the board meetings.

Section 5.3 Duties.

A) The Board of Directors shall transact business of GFWC of AR between annual conventions. It may delegate to the Executive Committee such power, as necessary.

B) The Board of Directors may transact business by voting by mail or electronic means when necessary. A report of such action shall be ratified and made a part of the minutes of the next meeting of the Board of Directors.

C) The Board of Directors shall recommend changes to the standing rules. Such rules may be adapted by a majority vote at any meeting open to the full membership without previous notice, may be suspended by a majority vote, amended, or rescinded by a two-thirds vote.

Section 5.4 Quorum. The quorum for meetings of the Board of Directors shall be 20, including at least 3 elected GFWC of AR officers.

ARTICLE VI – MEETINGS AND CONVENTIONS

Section 6.1 Annual Conventions

A) GFWC of AR shall hold an annual convention in the spring of the year. The date and location shall be decided by the Executive Committee. The Call to Convention shall be issued four weeks before the convention.

B) The GFWC of AR President, the Executive Committee, and the Convention/Meetings Coordinator shall arrange for the convention and approve all contracts before they are signed by the President and the Secretary.

C) A registration fee per capita according to the Standing Rules shall be required of each member in attendance. The fee shall be published with the Call to Convention. The fee shall be collected to defray the expenses of the convention.

D) All business, announcements, or other matters to be brought before the convention body must be approved of by the Executive Committee.

E) A copy (electronically transmitted or in print) of all reports, presentations, or proposals to be brought before the convention shall be given to the Secretary no later than the day of the Convention.

Section 6.2 Representation. All GFWC of AR members and their guest are encouraged to attend the annual convention. The voting body of a convention shall consist of all members in attendance and in good standing.

Section 6.3 Quorum. The quorum of a convention shall be 20 members including three (3) elected GFWC of AR officers, but at no time shall the lack of a quorum in a convention prevent those present from proceeding with the program (luncheon, awards, speaker, and entertainment) of the day. no business can be conducted.

Section 6.4 Emergencies.

A) In the case of national emergency, state emergency, or any type of event (man-made or natural) that could potentially put members in danger, the President, with the consent of the Executive Committee, may order an electronic meeting be held as a substitute for a regular, Executive Board, Board of Directors, special meeting, or convention.

B) In case of such emergencies as stated above elections may be ordered by mail or electronic voting.

D) A report of said emergency meetings and or elections held electronically or by mail shall be ratified and made a part of the minutes of the next meeting.

ARTICLE VII – COMMUNITY SERVICE PROGRAMS. Community Service Committees and their chairman will be appointed by the President with approval by the Executive Committee.

Section 7.1 Definition. The Community Service Programs shall be prescribed by GFWC and currently are Arts and Culture, Civic Engagement and Outreach, Education and Libraries, Environment, and Health and Wellness.

Section 7.2 Size and Term. Each Community Service Program shall be administered by one chairman. The Community Service Program Chairman shall be appointed by the President and approved by the Executive Committee.

Section 7.3 Duties. Each Community Service Program Chairman shall be responsible for promoting areas of work and involvement in her area. She will receive annual reports for her area of interest and consolidate the statistics as directed by the President. She will report to GFWC as directed.

ARTICLE VIII – STANDING COMMITTEES AND APPOINTEES. Standing Committees and their chairman will be appointed by the President with approval by the Executive Committee.

Section 8.1. Budget and Finance.

A) The Budget and Finance Committee shall consist of a chairman and two members plus the GFWC of AR Treasurer.

B) The Budget and Finance Committee shall prepare a budget for GFWC of AR, to be approved by the Executive Committee.

C) The budget year shall be from July 1 through June 30 each year.

D) The Budget and Finance Committee shall investigate and recommend to the Executive Committee investments suggested by the bank and trust company selected by the Executive Committee to handle the funds of GFWC of AR. No investment shall be made without the approval of the Executive Committee and will be subject to ratification by the Board of Directors.

E) The Budget and Finance Committee shall investigate and study, at least once during every four-year period, the dues, other income, and disbursements of the GFWC of AR, and report to the Executive Committee its findings regarding the necessity for a change in financial structure.

Section 8.2. Constitution and Bylaws.

A) The Constitution and Bylaws Committee shall consist of a chairman and two members who shall receive and present the changes necessary.

- B) The Parliamentarian shall be consultant to the Constitution and Bylaws Committee.
- C) The Constitution and Bylaws Committee shall submit to the President all proposed amendments six weeks before convention.
- D) The President shall submit proposed changes to the Executive Committee for their recommendations before publication and shall receive recommendations from the Board of Directors. The proposed changes may then be brought before the membership for consideration.

Section 8.3 Financial Review. A Financial Review Committee shall be appointed by the President with approval by the Executive Committee and shall conduct a review of all financial records at the end of each administration.

Section 8.4 Continuance. The Continuance Committee shall be composed of the GFWC of AR Past Presidents and shall be chaired by the Historian. At the end of each administration, the committee will prepare a narrative report of the GFWC of AR activities, which will become a permanent part of the official history of GFWC of AR.

Section 8.5 Elections. The Election Committee shall be appointed by the President with approval by the Executive Committee.

- A) It shall be the duty of this committee to notify GFWC of AR clubs of the procedures to be followed in submitting a candidate for GFWC of AR office.
- B) The Chairman shall receive nominations of candidates for office and notify the President. The names of all candidates who meet the requirements for eligibility shall be placed on the ballot.
- C) The committee shall conduct the election and report the results to the Executive Committee.

Section 8.6 Credentials. The Credentials Committee shall be appointed by the President with approval of the Executive Committee and shall insure credentials for conventions, Board of Director Meetings, and special meetings are accurate and reported.

Section 8.7 Membership Committee. The chairman for the Membership Committee Chairman shall be the President-elect. Other members may be appointed as needed. The Chairman shall insure that a current list of all GFWC of AR members and their contact information is accurate

Section 8.8 Leadership. The Leadership Committee shall be appointed by the President with approval of the Executive Committee and shall develop programs to promote leadership on all levels of GFWC of AR.

Section 8.9 Communication and Public Relations.

- A) The Communication and Public Relation Committee shall be appointed by the President with approval by the Executive Committee.
- B) It shall be the duty of this committee to promote and ensure the implementation of the tools necessary for proper communication, public awareness, and public relations, including, but not limited to the publication of *Federation Speaks*, media relations, social media, and website.

Section 8.10 Convention and Meeting Coordinator. The coordinator for convention and meetings shall be appointed by the President and approved by the Executive Committee. Additional committee members may be added as needed with the approval of the President and the Executive Committee.

A) It shall be the Convention and Meeting Coordinator's responsibility to obtain itemized bids for venue, food, drinks, equipment, guest rooms, etc.

B) The Convention and Meeting Coordinator will get documented approval by the President and the Executive Committee before any contracts are signed. All contracts shall be signed by the President and the Secretary.

C) The Convention and Meeting Coordinator shall provide the meeting room names or numbers to the President before the printing of the Convention program.

Section 8.11 Special Committees. Special committees may be created as deemed necessary by the President, Executive Committee, or Board of Directors. Appointments to these committees shall be made by the President with approval of the Executive Committee.

Section 8.12 Counselor. The Counselor shall be appointed by the President subject to approval by the Executive Committee and shall serve as an advisor to the President during her administration.

Section 8.13 Historian. The Historian shall be appointed by the President subject to approval by the

Executive Committee. She shall keep all historical documents pertinent to the administration to be archived.

ARTICLE IX – PARLIAMENTARY AUTHORITY. The most current edition of Roberts' Rules of Order shall govern all matters not covered by the GFWC of AR Constitution and Bylaws.

Section 9.1 PARLIAMENTARIAN. The Parliamentarian shall be appointed by the President with approval of the Executive Committee. She shall be a credentialed parliamentarian or have equivalent status She shall serve in an advisory capacity to GFWC of AR and attend meetings of the Executive Committee, Board of Directors, and annual conventions.-

ARTICLE X – AMENDMENTS. The Constitution and Bylaws may be amended at any annual convention by a two-thirds vote of all members present, provided the proposed amendment has been recommended by the Executive Committee and appended to the call to the convention. Amendments of an emergency nature may be considered at the annual convention without previous notice but require approval by a nine-tenths majority vote of those present.

ARTICLE XI - Resolutions

- A) The Resolutions Committee shall consist of a chairman and two members, who shall prepare resolutions for action by the convention. Resolutions pertaining to the work of Community Service Programs and Standing Committees shall be presented through their chairmen to the chairman of the Resolutions Committee. Other resolutions written and signed may be submitted to the Resolutions Committee.
- B) This committee shall make the reading of resolutions available to delegates after the first reading and before final adoption, if requested.
- C) It shall be the duty of this committee to compile resolutions in effect and provide the secretary with copies.
- D) This committee shall determine when the purpose of a resolution has been accomplished and will present to the Executive Committee and Board of Directors recommendations for its disposition by action of the voting body of the convention.

ARTICLE XII – DISSOLUTION.

Upon the dissolution of this organization, assets shall be distributed for one or more exempt purposes within the meaning of section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, or corresponding section of any future federal tax code, or shall be distributed to the federal government, or to a state or local government, for a public purpose.

*Constitution and Bylaws Revised Rewrite
Adapted October 30, 2021
President Connie Cloinger*

STANDING RULES

Section 1. Expenses allowed GFWC of AR President and President-elect.

- a. To further the work of GFWC of AR, the President shall receive 9 percent (9%) of all GFWC of AR dues collected each year. She will not make an accounting of this fund.
- b. Since the President is a member of the GFWC Board of Directors and represents her state clubs at GFWC conventions and board meetings, GFWC of AR shall pay expenses for her, which are not paid for by GFWC to attend such meetings, as follows: round trip, economy plane fare, one half of the room rate based on the convention room rate, meals at meetings and registrations fees.
- c. Since the President is a member of South Central Region, she represents the clubs of her state at the annual fall SCR conference, GFWC of AR shall pay expenses for her to attend such meetings as follows: round trip, economy plane fare, one half of room rate based on the conference room rate, conference meals and registration fees.
- d. A suite of rooms (or room) suitable for holding Executive Committee and other meetings shall be provided for the President during each GFWC of AR convention and Board of Director meetings.
- e. The President shall be reimbursed for office expenses and other expenditures upon presentation of receipts to the GFWC of AR Treasurer.
- f. In the second year of the administration, to add continuity to the transition from one administration to the next, the President-elect may attend the GFWC orientation meeting and GFWC of AR shall pay her expenses for travel to include economy plane fare round trip, one half of the room rate based on the meeting room rate, meals, and registration fees.
- g. At the end of an administration, the newly elected President may attend the GFWC convention with GFWC of AR paying any expenses which are not paid by GFWC as follows: economy plane fare round trip, one half of room rate based on the convention room rate, meals, and registration fees.

Section 2. Expenses of Other Elected Officers, Chairmen, and Appointees.

- a. Expenses of elected officers, chairmen, and appointees other than the President and President-elect may be reimbursed for expenses not to exceed \$50 per year.
- b. Chairmen who have charge of any special projects of GFWC of AR may receive an allowance of \$25 each year.

Section 3. Expense Reporting.

All allowances, except the 9 percent of dues allowed the President, and meals in the President's expenses under Standing Rules Section 1 b and c, shall be made only when itemized statements have been approved by the Budget and Finance Committee.

Section 4. Convention Expenditures and Fees Obligations

- a. GFWC of AR shall provide for the guest speaker from GFWC, her hotel room with all meals, and any transportation not paid for by GFWC.
- b. Meals shall be provided for other local guest speakers.
- c. GFWC of AR shall provide for its President a suite of rooms (or room) suitable for holding Executive Committee and other meetings during each convention.
- d. The GFWC of AR Treasurer shall be responsible for collecting all meal and registration fees as determined by the Convention/Meeting Coordinator with the approval of the Executive Committee for annual conventions and board meetings and shall, in turn, pay the hotel or caterer. Such per capita registration fees shall be published with the call to convention and will be directed to defray expenses incurred at these meetings.
- e. The GFWC of AR Club that is hosting a convention or meeting shall receive \$35 from convention registration fees to help defray the expenses of the annual convention, with no further monetary

allowances being made.

- f. The sum of \$10 may be provided for a memorial service held in conjunction with the convention.
- g. Printing of the official call, programs, name tags, and credential cards shall be paid for by GFWC of AR.
- h. All bills that are to be paid from the GFWC of AR treasury must be presented to and allowed by the Executive Committee and approved by the Budget and Finance Committee immediately following convention adjournment.

Section 5. Hosting Club Obligations.

- a. The club(s) hosting a convention shall provide floral and/or other decorations for banquets and luncheons and favors if desired. It shall pay all other expenses that usually devolve upon a hostess, including courtesies to guests. The \$35 allowed from GFWC of AR registration fee may be used in any way the club(s) desires. All other expenses incurred by the club(s) shall be paid by the club(s).
- b. The hosting club(s) may provide courtesy gifts/baskets to visiting guests and to the GFWC of President at its own expense.
- c. The hosting club chairman and the Convention/Meeting Coordinator shall work together to find entertainment and plan receptions. The cost of either or both is to be decided ahead of time by these parties. The total amount to be paid by GFWC of AR will not exceed \$150.

Section 6. Directory and Club President's Manual

The Directory and Club President's Manual shall be created at the beginning of the administration and printed as authorized in the current budget. The manual shall be distributed as follows: each GFWC of AR officer, each GFWC of AR chairman or appointee, each Club President, and the Past Presidents. Any member of GFWC of AR who desires a hard copy can print/or copy what they need from the website or have their Club President do so.

Section 7. GFWC of AR Dues and Treasurer's Obligations.

- a. Annual club dues per member are \$25 (\$10 for GFWC of AR and \$15 for GFWC) and shall be sent to the GFWC of AR Treasurer by November of each year.
- b. The GFWC of AR Treasurer shall pay dues to GFWC before February 15th of each year based on the number of active members.
- c. The GFWC of AR Treasurer shall pay the South Central Region dues of \$50 or the amount specified by the Region before October 1 of each year.
- d. The GFWC of AR Treasurer shall maintain the state finances via an automated system, as approved by the Executive Board and the Budget and Finance Committee.
- e. All financial contracts must be approved by the Executive Board prior to signing by the President and the Secretary.

Section 8. Cellular Phones/Mobile Communication Devices. Cellular phones and Mobile Communication Devices are to be used with discretion during meetings, workshops, or food functions. Audible ringers on cellular phones and mobile devices are to be placed on silent.

Section 9. South Central Region (SCR).

- a. GFWC of AR shall be a member of the South Central Region with the federations of Arizona, Louisiana, New Mexico, Oklahoma, and Texas. As such, it shall pay the annual dues as required by SCR.
- b. GFWC of AR may endorse a candidate to serve on the South Central Region Executive Committee. This must be done at the annual meeting of GFWC of AR in the odd-numbered year.

Section 10. Financial Review Committee.

The Financial Review Committee shall consist of a chairman and two members who will review, audit, and prepare a report by August st following the end of the administration.

Section 11. Internal Assessments

- a. The South Central Region Hostess Fund is \$200 per year to defray cost of the conference when GFWC of AR is hosting.
- b. The History Fund is \$50 per year.

Section 12. Federation Speaks publication.

- a. The official publication for GFWC of AR is *Federation Speaks*.
- b. *Federation Speaks* will be published three (3) times per year.
- c. *Federation Speaks* will be sent to members electronically. Any member of GFWC of AR who desires a printed copy of *Federation Speaks* may print a copy from the website or request one from their Club President. The printing and mailing of *Federation Speaks* will occur only as funded in the approved budget.

Section 13. Club member names and information.

- a. Names of clubs and members of clubs affiliated with the GFWC of AR shall not be disclosed except as may appear as items of news, or printed in the Directory and Club President's Manual, the GFWC of AR webpage, or in club yearbooks.

Section 14. GFWC of AR Areas.

- a. The Basic Structure that defines the Areas of GFWC of AR shall be governed by the GFWC of AR Board of Directors and GFWC of AR general membership.
- b. GFWC of AR Areas are as follows:
 - I-Central (GFWC of AR Clubs in Morrilton and North Little Rock.)
 - II-Southeast (GFWC of AR Clubs in DeWitt, Hazen, Fordyce, Stuttgart and Warren.)
 - III-Northeast (GFWC of AR Clubs in Blytheville and Hardy.)
 - IV-Northcentral (GFWC of AR Clubs in Cotter and Harrison.)
 - V-Northwest (GFWC of AR Clubs in Fort Smith, Prairie Grove and Van Buren.)
 - VI-Southwest (Currently there are no GFWC of AR Clubs in this area.)

Section 15. Dissolution of GFWC of AR Districts.

- a. Whereas the Constitution, Bylaws and Standing Rules, adapted October 30, 2021, eliminates GFWC of AR Districts, each District shall liquidate their assets according to their District Bylaws.
- b. In the absence of such a District Bylaw governing the dissolution of all assets shall be liquidated in compliance with the GFWC of AR Bylaw, Article VIII.
- c. District assets may be donated to GFWC, GFWC of AR, or distributed equally between the clubs of the district.

Standing Rules Revised Rewrite

Adapted October 30, 2021

President Connie Cloinger

DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY

INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE
DISTRICT DIRECTOR
C - 1130
ATLANTA, GA 30301

Date: AUG 27 1992

Employer Identification Number: 71-0502075
Contact Person:
BRENDA WILKINS
Contact Telephone Number:
(404) 331-0192

GENERAL FEDERATION OF WOMEN'S CLUBS
OF ARKANSAS
PO BOX 330
FORREST CITY, AR 72335

Accounting Period Ending:
May 31
Form 990 Required:
Yes
Addendum Applies:
Yes

Dear Applicant:

Based on information supplied, and assuming your operations will be as stated in your application for recognition of exemption, we have determined you are exempt from Federal Income tax under section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code as an organization described in Section 501(c)(3).

We have further determined that you are not a private foundation within the meaning of section 509(a) of the Code, because you are an organization described in section 509(a)(2).

If your sources of support, or your purpose, character, or method of operation change, please let us know so we can consider the effect of the change on your exempt status and foundation status. In the case of an amendment to your organizational document or bylaws, please send us a copy of the amended document or bylaws. Also, you should inform us of all changes in your name or address.

As of January 1, 1994, you are liable for taxes under the Federal Insurance Contributions Act (social security taxes) on remuneration of \$100 or more you pay to each of your employees during a calendar year. You are not liable for the tax imposed under the Federal Unemployment Tax Act (FUTA).

Since you are not a private foundation, you are not subject to the excise taxes under Chapter 42 of the Code. However, you are not automatically exempt from other Federal excise taxes. If you have any questions about excise, employment, or other Federal taxes, please let us know.

Grantors and contributors may rely on this determination unless the Internal Revenue Service publishes notice to the contrary. However, if you lose your section 509(a)(2) status, a grantor or contributor may not rely on this determination if he or she was in part responsible for, or was aware of, the act or failure to act, or the substantial or material change on the part of the organization that resulted in your loss of such status, or if he or she acquired knowledge that the Internal Revenue Service had given notice that you would no longer be classified as a section 509(a)(2) organization.

GENERAL FEDERATION OF WOMENSCLUBS

In cases where the recipient organization is not exempt under section 501(c)(3), there should be evidence that the funds will remain dedicated to the required purposes and that they will be used for those purposes by the recipient.

If we have indicated in the heading of this letter that an addendum applies, the enclosed addendum is an integral part of this letter.

Because this letter could help resolve any questions about your *exempt* status and foundation status, you should keep it in your permanent records.

If you have any questions, please contact the person whose name and telephone number are shown in the heading of this letter.

Sincerely yours,

A handwritten signature in black ink, appearing to read "Paul Williams", with a long horizontal flourish extending to the right.

/s/ Paul Williams District
Director

Enclosure(s):
Addendum

GFWC Member Information 2022-2024

Name	Address	City, State, Zip	Phone	email
GFWC International Officers				
Strahanoski, Deb	1011 Galway Rd	Joliet, IL 60431	(815) 953-4829	dstrahanoski@gfwc.org
Brazil, Suellen	6510 Bay View Lane	Daphne, AR 36526	(251) 213-8951	sbrazil@gfwc.org
Carriker, Wendy	483 Farmbrook Rd	Mount Airy, NC 27030	(336) 325-7220	wcarriker@gfwc.org
Frankfurth, Jolie	17529 Edinburg Dr	Tampa, FL 33647	(813) 727-5504	jfrankfurth@gfwc.org
Williams, Mary Beth	8 Sequoyah Rd	Colorado Springs, CO 80906	(719) 651-2917	mbwilliams@gfwc.org
Wright, Becky	81 County Rd281	Banner, MS 38913	(662) 983-8836	beckywright1964@gmail.com
Moydell, Katie	200 Conrad Cir	Columbia, SC 29212	(803) 608-2748	kmoydell@gfwc.org
Addante, Diane	707 Castilleja Ct	Naperville, IL 60540	(630) 416-0756	dinaper@cs.com
GFWC International Chairmen				
Ament, Pam	4203 West 179th St	Torrance, CA90504	(310) 344-8605	ament.pam5@gmail.com
Ames, Nancy	PO Box 395	Canaan, ME 04924	(207) 474-4551	nancygfwcomes76@gmail.com
Bergdoll, Dara	17650 NE 60th St	Williston, FL 32696	(352) 843-3008	darabeth1@hotmail.com
Casper, Juliet	4115 Friendfield Tr	Little River, SC 29566	(843) 446-8479	jcasper9200@gmail.com
Fehr, Shelli	85 Kennelworth Cir	Hampton, IL 61256	(309) 737-3884	shellifehr@hotmail.com
Fisher, Dale	9079 Park Ave	Manassas, VA 20110	(571) 238-0963	dalegfwc86@gmail.com
Gettys, Susan	3144 East Topping Cir	Springfield, MO 65804	(417) 257-4693	susan.getts@att.net
Habgood, Carol	319 Wickes St	San Antonio, T 78210	(210) 392-4406	carolhabgood@sbcglobal.net
Hauenstein, Sandy	376 Stonehedge Lane	Mechanicsburg, PA 7055	(717) 943-3531	sandygfwc@outlook.com
Kaler, Karen	13036 Falcons Way	Savage, MN 55378	(952) 237-6020	karenkaler0505@gmail.com
Neese, Tina	1211 Spring Marsh Ct NE	Gainesville, GA 30501	(678) 458-0337	tinanneese@gmail.com
Nowak, Jen	51 Glenn Dr	Wilbraham, MA 01095	(413) 535-9083	jwnowak@charter.net
Oliphant, Sharon	871 NW 251st Dr	Newberry, FL 32669	(727) 424-3835	solip561@aol.com
Post, Celene	3624 W Laredo St	Chandler, AZ 85226	(602) 502-1117	crp918@live.com
Powell, Mary	96005 Osprey Pt Ln	Fernandina Beach, FL 32034	(904) 753-2196	pmsi1984@gmail.com
Robey, Katie	97 Hudson St	Marlborough, MA 01752	(508) 561-4898	krobey@robeybaur.org
Rudder, Theresa	115 Alamosa Ave	Alamosa, CO 81101	(719) 588-7913	theresarudder@msn.com
Schafer, Trisha	1123 West Central Ave	Princeton, IL 61356	(815) 303-0896	trishamae2520@gmail.com
Shibley, Donna	55 Rowley St	Agawam, MA 01001	(413) 519-1845	dmshibley@gmail.com
Smith, Beth	655 River Bend Rd	Greenville, TN 37743	(423) 278-8419	sixpetstoomany@netscape.net
Sowers, Kathryn	1214 Jeanette Ave	Vinton, VA 24179	(540) 342-8611	kacky3@verizon.net
Wells, Jeanette	1595 Ardmore Ave	Glendale Hts, IL 60139	(630) 865-4765	gfwc.jtw@gmail.com
South Central Region Officers				
Ferguson, June	1011 S Globe Ave	Portales, NM 88130	(575) 760-0890	juneferguson@hotmail.com
Thomas, Debbie	1420 N 10th St	Van Buren, AR 72956	(479) 651-0810	thomasdb@aol.com
Costilow, Miriam	PO Box 991	Hugo, OK 74743-0991	(580) 326-1618	costilow4423@sbcglobal.net
Poe, Patti	7187 Rock Springs School Rd	Nocona, TX 76255	(940) 867-3973	ppoetfwc59@gmail.com
GFWC AR State Officers				
Arnold, Mary Ann	7321 South "Q" Street	Fort Smith, AR 72903	(479) 414-3363	maarnoldgfwc@sbcglobal.net
Davis, Vickie	712 Lincoln Hill Circle	Van Buren, AR 72956	(479) 414-8058	vickie85@aol.com
Hall, Debbie	5701 Free Ferry Road #33	Fort Smith, AR 72903	(479) 459-5793	debbiehall@cox.net
Jackson, Jane	1917 S Prairie St	Stuttgart, AR 72160	(870) 672-1572	jjwcksn@yahoo.com
Maynard, Marianne	2110 Strait Place	Stuttgart, AR 72160	(870) 830-1580	mmaynard1943@gmail.com
Ramer, Judy	2025 Sage Meadow Cir	Sherwood, AR 72120	(501) 766-6427	razorback49@earthlink.net
Stayton, Robyn	5901 JFK Blvd #5102	North Little Rock, AR 72116	(870) 267-2775	stayton4905@yahoo.com
GFWC AR State Chairman, Club Presidents, Club Treasurers				
Braswell, Judy	739 Hwy 278 West	Warren, AR 71671	(870) 356-8280	jhbraswell@hotmail.com
Burton, Lori	7215 Stonebrook Drive	Fort Smith, AR 72916	(479) 459-5765	lcburton@swbell.net
Cloinger, Connie	2103 Tyler	Pocahontas, AR 72455	(870) 892-8895	cloinger@centurytel.net
Cloinger, Katrina	2103 Tyler	Pocahontas, AR 72455	(870) 892-8895	cloinger@centurytel.net
Crum, Ann	546 Highway 152	Humphrey, AR 72073	(870) 674-7340	mrsrum2002@yahoo.com
Davis, Clydine	413 North Bradley	Warren, AR 71671	(870) 820-2757	fcdavis@sbcglobal.net
Dunn, Deena	803 Northview Dr.	Van Buren, AR 72956	(479) 806-4431	ddunn@vbsd.us
Essex, Laura	1012 Lincoln St	DeWitt, AR 72042	(870) 830-0489	laurawe81@outlook.com
Ferguson, Donna	271 Grant 167059	Sheridan, AR 72150	(870) 352-7197	donna.ferguson@arkansas.gov
Fields, Mary	2107 Coker-Hampton Drive	Stuttgart, AR 72160	(870) 674-4450	mfields1185@centurytel.net
Foot, Judy	PO Box 17	Hazen, AR 72064,	(870) 830-3733	footjudy@gmail.com
Foust, Katherine	PO Box 88	Morrilton, AR 72110	(501) 242-4342	kathfoust@hotmail.com
Gibson, Judy	154 B Bradley 209	Warren, AR 71671	(870) 723-3134	gjudy630@yahoo.com

Name	Address	City, State, Zip	Phone	email
Gill, Morgan	2019 McCracken St	Stuttgart, AR 72160,	(870) 830-7887	morgangill16@gmail.com
Glaze, Dr Diana	4112 Mellene Drive	North Little Rock, AR 72118	(501) 771-1046	dllisow@aol.com
Glover, Mary	1806 Fairway	Stuttgart, AR 72160	(870) 674-7403	m_kglover@yahoo.com
Goux, Debbie	12814 Diamond Lane	Fort Smith, AR 72916	(479) 459-3339	djgoux@cox.net
Gray, Lillie Jo	1108 Penny Place	Stuttgart, AR 72160	(870) 830-1636	ljgray44@yahoo.com
Hadley, Penelope	124 Wagon Trail	Williford, AR 72482	(870) 847-0148	penehadley@gmail.com
Helm, Madge	2105 Clapboard Hill	Little Rock, AR 72227,	(501) 227-6524	madgehelm@gmail.com
Hoskyn, Leanne	1910 Coker Hampton Dr	Stuttgart, AR 72160	(870) 830-0339	lhoskyn@pccua.edu
Jeter, Meredith	1402 E. 22nd	Stuttgart, AR 72160	(870) 830-9640	meredithjeter@gmail.com
Kray, Mertice	148 Cedar St	Cotter, AR 72626	(870) 404-0448	mertice.kray@gmail.com
Lipton, JeNelle	108 S Walnut St	Warren, AR 71671	(501) 416-7882	jmldevco@sbcglobal.net
McCourt, Linda	PO Box 285	Prairie Grove, AR 72753	(479) 790-4554	Lmccourt@pgtc.com
Melnychuk, Kari	1108 Cherry Court	Stuttgart, AR 72160	(870) 255-5502	k_lewis44@hotmail.com
Molock, Glenda	114 Duquesne	Little Rock, AR 72223	(713) 501-1906	gmolock@sbcglobal.net
Morrow, Rosa	PO Box 531	Fordyce, AR 71742	(870) 352-0486	rosa21@windstream.net
Orliceck, Phyllis	8413 Highway 11	Stuttgart, AR 72160	(870) 830-1003	sorliceck@aol.com
Parnell, Diane	246 Bradley 261	Hermitage, AR 71647	(870) 820-2823	DianeParnell4343@gmail.com
Powell, Beth	310 Old River Road	Morrilton, AR 72110	(501) 590-2963	rpow54@hotmail.com
Riedmueller, Claudia	510 Oaklawn Dr	Morrilton, AR 72110	(501) 208-2590	c_riedmueller@att.net
Robison, Renee	PO Box 832	Stuttgart, AR 72160	(501) 680-1227	rrobison@pccua.edu
Scott, Qyuen	4013 S 89th St	Fort Smith, AR 72903	(479) 926-8248	gascott11@yahoo.com
Scroggins, Lynn	55 Cecil Rd	Morrilton, AR 72110	(501) 208-7479	lynn_1954@yahoo.com
Shade, Rhonda	2206 Emerald Dr.	Van Buren, AR 72956	(479) 208-0496	rshade@vbsd.us
Smith, Jo Marie	4403 Westridge Dr	North Little Rock, AR 72116	(501) 529-0722	
Thomas, Debbie	1420 North 10th	Van Buren, AR 72956	(479) 651-0810	thomasdb@aol.com
Townsend, Jerrie	1907 Beumer	Stuttgart, AR 72160	(870) 672-2796	jerriet51@icloud.com
VanHouten, Rosetta	PO Box 95	Hazen, AR 72064	(870) 255-3185	
Weems, Chris	2328 Hwy 249	Hazen, AR 72064	(870) 255-3284	weems3@centurylink.net
Wirt, Angela	513 West B Ave	North Little Rock, AR 72116	(870) 850-6127	